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Ashleigh Watson

From: Ella Bambrough-Copeland on behalf of James Palmer
Sent: Tuesday, 2 April 2024 8:51 pm
To: Nicholas Smith [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
Cc: James Coombes [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
Subject: No surprises: Impending voluntary redundancy process at MfE
Attachments: Minister Simmonds - Voluntary Redundancy Notification 02042024.pdf

Kia ora Nicholas 
 
Please find attached a letter to the Minister for the Environment provided under the no surprises principle.  
 
While our Ministry is not yet embarking on a formal organisational change process, we will be announcing 
an invitation for expressions of interest in Voluntary Redundancy on Monday 8 April at approximately 
11:15am.  
 
MfE has been preparing, through an operating model review last year, and workforce and work programme 
planning in the first quarter of 2024, to be effective and efficient in our role as advisor to the Government on 
the environment, while also reducing in size over the coming years.  
 
The combined impact of the government’s 7.5 percent savings target, the return of $300 million (over four 
years) in Resource Management (RM) funding in the mini budget, and our already declining baseline will 
be significant for the Ministry.  
 
While we require budget certainty to understand the full scale of change, we have advised staff that 
redundancies will likely be required to right size the ministry over the next few years.  
 
As part of our preparation, and to acknowledge feedback from the PSA and our non-unionised employees, 
our executive team has agreed to offer an EOI opportunity for VR prior to a formal change proposal and 
consultation process as soon as possible after the Budget on 30 May.  
 
Te Pūrengi, our leadership team, retains discretion over whether to accept EOIs from permanent staff. A 
key criterion when assessing EOIs will be the need to retain skills and abilities critical to delivering 
Government priorities.  
 
At this stage we are unable to provide estimated numbers of those who may express an interest in VR. 
However, we will update ministers on the numbers and outcomes as soon as possible after the EOI 
process has been completed. The current timeframe for this process is outlined below, along with key 
messages which will be provided to staff, and media if asked.  
 
April Mon 8 Approx 11:15 Ministry wide announcement  

Open to all permanent employees for ten working days  
 

Fri 19 12 noon EOI process closes.  
 
Mon 22 EOIs assessment  
 
Mon 29 Notification of EOI acceptance or decline sent to individuals.  

Last date of employment in accordance with employment agreement. The majority of 
employees have 4-week notice period.  

 
 

Key messages:  
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 Te Pūrengi, our executive leadership team, is inviting any permanent kaimahi to express an interest 
in voluntary redundancy ahead of a probable formal change process in the next few months.  

 While we won’t be clear on our funding situation or its impact on jobs until the Budget in May, we do 
know we will need to reduce in size and that redundancies are likely as a result.  

 Voluntary redundancy is a potential option for those who want certainty ahead of a formal proposal 
and consultation process. We are aiming to have a proposal ready as soon as possible after the 
Budget – likely by the middle of June.  

 Expressions of Interest for voluntary redundancy will open on April 8 and remain open for 10 
working days until 12noon Friday 19 April.  

 Te Pūrengi retains sole discretion over whether to accept EOIs from permanent staff. A key criteria 
when assessing EOIs will be the need to retain skills and abilities critical to delivering Government 
priorities.  

 
 
For any further questions, please contact Laura Dixon, Deputy Secretary Business Transformation and 
Services on laura.dixon@mfe.govt.nz phone:  
 
Ngā mihi 
 
James 
 

James Palmer  

Secretary for the Environment | Te Tumu Whakarae mō te Taiao 

EA: Ella Bambrough‐Copeland Ella.Bambrough‐Copeland@mfe.govt.nz  

Ministry for the Environment | Manatū mō te Taiao 

James.Palmer@mfe.govt.nz |environment.govt.nz  
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2 April 2024 
 
Hon Penny Simmonds 
P.Simmonds@ministers.govt.nz 
 
 
Tēnā koe Minister, 
 
 
Re: Invitation for expressions of interest for Voluntary Redundancy (VR) 
 
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise you that the Ministry for the Environment (MfE) will be 
opening an Expression of Interest (EOI) process for VR on Monday April 8 and the reasons 
for this decision. 
 
MfE has been preparing, through an operating model review last year, and workforce and 
work programme planning in the first quarter of 2024, to be effective and efficient in our role 
as advisor to the Government on the environment, while also reducing in size over the 
coming years.  
 
The combined impact of the government’s 7.5 percent savings target, the return of $300 
million (over four years) in Resource Management (RM) funding in the mini budget, and our 
already declining baseline will be significant for the Ministry.   
 
While we require budget certainty to understand the full scale of change, we have advised 
staff that redundancies will likely be required to right size the ministry over the next few 
years. 
 
As part of our preparation, and to acknowledge feedback from the PSA and our non-
unionised employees, our executive team has agreed to offer an EOI opportunity for VR 
prior to a formal change proposal and consultation process as soon as possible after the 
Budget on 30 May. 
 
Te Pūrengi, our leadership team, retains discretion over whether to accept EOIs from 
permanent staff. A key criterion when assessing EOIs will be the need to retain skills and 
abilities critical to delivering Government priorities. 
 
At this stage we are unable to provide estimated numbers of those who may express an 
interest in VR. However, we will update ministers on the numbers and outcomes as soon as 
possible after the EOI process has been completed.  The current timeframe for this process 
is outlined below, along with key messages which will be provided to staff, and media if 
asked. 
 
April Mon 8 Approx 11:15 Ministry wide announcement  
  Open to all permanent employees for ten working days 
   
Fri 19  12 noon EOI process closes. 



 

 

 
Mon 22 EOIs assessment  
 
Mon 29 Notification of EOI acceptance or decline sent to individuals. 

- Last date of employment in accordance with employment agreement. The 

majority of employees have 4-week notice period. 

Key messages: 
 

• Te Pūrengi, our executive leadership team, is inviting any permanent kaimahi to 

express an interest in voluntary redundancy ahead of a probable formal change 

process in the next few months. 

• While we won’t be clear on our funding situation or its impact on jobs until the Budget 

in May, we do know we will need to reduce in size and that redundancies are likely as 

a result. 

• Voluntary redundancy is a potential option for those who want certainty ahead of a 

formal proposal and consultation process. We are aiming to have a proposal ready 

as soon as possible after the Budget – likely by the middle of June. 

• Expressions of Interest for voluntary redundancy will open on April 8 and remain 

open for 10 working days until 12noon Friday 19 April. 

• Te Pūrengi retains sole discretion over whether to accept EOIs from permanent staff. 

A key criteria when assessing EOIs will be the need to retain skills and abilities 

critical to delivering Government priorities. 

 
If you have any questions please contact me on: james.palmer@mfe.govt.nz or 
laura.dixon@mfe.govt.nz 
 
 
Nāku noa, nā, 
 
 
 
 
James Palmer 
Secretary for the Environment 
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Ashleigh Watson

From: Ella Bambrough-Copeland on behalf of James Palmer
Sent: Tuesday, 2 April 2024 8:46 pm
To: martin.kessick@publicservice.govt.nz
Subject: No surprises: Impending voluntary redundancy process at MfE
Attachments: Minister Willis - Voluntary Redundancy Notification 02042024.pdf

Kia ora Martin, 
 
Thank you for your email below and the request to ensure your Minister is kept abreast of any 
organisational change happening across the Public Sector.  
 
Please find attached a letter to the Minister of Public Service provided under the no surprises principle.  
 
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

 Last date of employment in accordance with employment agreement. The 
majority of employees have 4-week notice period.  

Key messages:  
 



2

 Te Pūrengi, our executive leadership team, is inviting any permanent kaimahi to express an 
interest in voluntary redundancy ahead of a probable formal change process in the next few 
months.  
 While we won’t be clear on our funding situation or its impact on jobs until the Budget in 
May, we do know we will need to reduce in size and that redundancies are likely as a result.  
 Voluntary redundancy is a potential option for those who want certainty ahead of a formal 
proposal and consultation process. We are aiming to have a proposal ready as soon as 
possible after the Budget – likely by the middle of June.  
 Expressions of Interest for voluntary redundancy will open on April 8 and remain open for 10 
working days until 12noon Friday 19 April.  
 Te Pūrengi retains sole discretion over whether to accept EOIs from permanent staff. A key 
criteria when assessing EOIs will be the need to retain skills and abilities critical to delivering 
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

 

         

 

 
 

 

From: Martin Kessick <Martin.Kessick@publicservice.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 4:58:28 PM 
To: James Palmer <James.Palmer@mfe.govt.nz> 
Subject: Change Updates  
 

[IN‐CONFIDENCE] 

 
Kia ora James, 
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2 April 2024 
 
Hon Nicola Willis 
N.Willis@ministers.govt.nz 
 
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, 8 April 2024 10:44 am
To: Regan Brash [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
Subject: No surprises: Impending voluntary redundancy process at MfE
Attachments: Minister Bishop - Voluntary Redundancy Notification 08042024.pdf

Kia ora Regan 
 
Please find attached a letter to the Minister Responsible for RMA Reform provided under the no surprises 
principle.  
 
While our Ministry is not yet embarking on a formal organisational change process, we will be announcing 
an invitation for expressions of interest in Voluntary Redundancy today, Monday 8 April at approximately 
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
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COMMERCIAL 

8 April 2024 
 
Hon Chris Bishop 
Chris.Bishop@parliament.govt.nz 
 
 
Tēnā koe Minister, 
 
 
Re: Invitation for expressions of interest for Voluntary Redundancy (VR) 
 
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise you that the Ministry for the Environment (MfE) will be 
opening an Expression of Interest (EOI) process for VR today, Monday April 8 and the 
reasons for this decision. 
 
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
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 4:14 pm
To: 'N.Willis@ministers.govt.nz'
Subject: MfE proposed changes to position descriptions and future pay 

Kia ora Minister 
 
This is to advise you, under the no surprises principle, of proposed changes to the position descriptions and future 
pay of some of our staff. This is an operational matter, however there is the potential for this to reach the media.  
 

 Next week we will begin consulting with chief and principal advisor cohorts on proposals that would see 
most of their remuneration bands moving down a level, in line with most other agencies. This would result 
in a pay freeze for most of these staff. 

 All future chief and principal advisors will be appointed at the lower bands. This includes a Chief Advisor 
Māori Policy which we are shortlisting for now. This position was advertised at the higher band, and we will 
be advising short listed candidates of the new pay band next week. 

 We are also proposing changes for Team Leaders which could affect where they are located in the band and 
may mean small pay increases for some of these staff. 
 

We have advised the PSA and prepared reactive public messaging. We will stress the proposed changes are about 
fairness within the public sector and are unrelated to fiscal savings or budget considerations. 
 
I’m happy to provide further details if you require them. 
 
Ngā mihi,  
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
To: 'simon.watts@parliament.govt.nz'
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
To: 'P.Simmonds@ministers.govt.nz'
Cc: Nicholas Smith [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
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
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 4:13 pm
To: 'Chris.Bishop@parliament.govt.nz'
Cc: Regan Brash [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
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
Sent: Friday, 19 July 2024 5:17 pm
To: Penny.Simmonds@parliament.govt.nz
Cc: Devina Shetty [EXTERNAL] (Parliament); Sukie Paras [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
Subject: Update on final decisions following consultation 

Kia ora Minister 
  
This email is to update you on final decisions following consultaƟon with staff on our proposed Ministry reset ‐ 
released for feedback in June. 

 
I will be outlining these decisions to MfE staff next Thursday at 11am and will provide a summary update on our 
website shortly aŌerward.  
  
You may recall the original proposal was to reduce our full Ɵme equivalent (FTE) staff from 993 FTEs as of late May, 
to 690 in 2025/26. Following consistent staff feedback about risks to our ability to deliver our work programme with 
the scaled back resources, I have agreed a small (2.4%) increase in permanent staffing over that iniƟally proposed. 
This is well short of the increases sought by staff. 
  
I have carefully evaluated the criƟcality of this addiƟonal investment and I am saƟsfied it is necessary to manage 
unacceptable risks to delivering on the government's prioriƟes and our statutory obligaƟons. MfE will pay for this by 
reducing the pool of funding available for discreƟonary non‐FTE expenses, parƟcularly funding for contractors and 
consultants. 
  
The details are as follows: 

 For the current financial year, I have agreed to an increase of 24 roles from that in our iniƟal proposal ‐ 
giving a total of 836 FTE (of which 128.5 will be Ɵme limited transiƟonal roles). 

 For the 2025/26 year we will start with 714 FTEs reducing to 707.5 FTE by January 2026, when the remaining 
Ɵme limited transiƟonal roles end. This amounts to an increase of 17.5 permanent roles on that iniƟally 
proposed. 

 Overall, the final figures represent an approximate 30 percent reducƟon in FTE staff by July 2026 from the 
997 we had in late May this year. 

 When looking at funded FTEs for the 2023/24 financial year, our staffing reduces by 42 percent by 2025/26. 
This difference is largely due to our recruitment controls as we managed our FTEs down this year in 
anƟcipaƟon of a decline in our baseline funding over the next four years. 

 We have also made some adjustments to seniority across our cohorts, which helps to miƟgate some of the 
cost of the increased staffing. 

   
While our budget will be Ɵght over the next couple of years, I’m confident this level of staffing will enable us to 
deliver your prioriƟes and our statutory obligaƟons while acƟvely managing risks, within our budget constraints. This 
includes increased scruƟny and accountability expected of budget holders to deliver within budgets, coupled with 
quarterly review and reprioriƟsaƟon across the business to ensure funds are allocated to the highest prioriƟes and 
expended in a Ɵmely manner. 
  
I’m happy to provide more informaƟon at any Ɵme. 
  
Nga mihi, nā  
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
Sent: Friday, 19 July 2024 5:16 pm
To: christopher.bishop@parliament.govt.nz
Cc: Regan Brash [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT); Sarah King [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
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
Sent: Friday, 19 July 2024 5:15 pm
To: Simon.Watts@parliament.govt.nz
Cc: James Coombes [EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT); Jamie Molea [EXTERNAL] (Parliament); Helena Terry 

[EXTERNAL] (PARLIAMENT)
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

 

         

 

 

 




